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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Good

          3  morning, everyone. Your eyesight is fine, I am not

          4  Phil Reed.  My name is Joe Addabbo, I am going to be

          5  chairing this Committee for a moment, while Phil

          6  Reed is out.  I understand he has a slight case of

          7  pink eye, so he may not be here today.  And we

          8  appreciate that because we do not want to get pink

          9  eye.  But, I appreciate Phil allowing me to Chair

         10  this Committee hearing today, because I Chair, also,

         11  the Civil Service and Labor Committee, and this

         12  issue today I am most interested in as well.

         13                 I am going to be reading a statement

         14  that Phil would have read.  So, if you close your

         15  eyes and picture Phil maybe it will work.

         16                 I also want to welcome here, our

         17  colleague, Council Member Koppell, for being here as

         18  well.

         19                 Good morning, Phil Reed, as Chair of

         20  the Committee of Consumer of Affairs, thanks you for

         21  joining us today.  We are here this morning to

         22  review Introduction 271, a proposed local law that

         23  requires any sightseeing bus that offers tour

         24  narration, to provide such narration from a live,

         25  licensed, sightseeing guide. In other words, if a

                                                            4

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  tour bus wants to provide an oral tour that tour

          3  must be given by a real person who has received a

          4  City license to do so.  If a tour bus wants to offer

          5  a tour without any accompanying narration, they have

          6  every right to do so.  This bill would not require

          7  them to change their operating practices; nor would

          8  it change any other element of the licensing

          9  requirements for sightseeing buses or tour guides.

         10  Nonetheless, Intro. 271 would have a bearing on

         11  roughly 1,300 licensed City tour guides and

         12  approximately 130 licensed sightseeing buses and

         13  their owners. More importantly, it could impact

         14  consumers enjoyments of bus tours, specifically,

         15  roughly 37 million people who visit New York City

         16  each year.

         17                 In any event, this our first hearing

         18  on the bill. So, our focus today is on gathering

         19  information and understanding the arguments in

         20  support of, and opposed to, the legislation.  To

         21  that end, we have invited the Administration, a

         22  variety of tour guides and union representatives,

         23  tour bus owners and operators, and New York City and

         24  Company.  We are eager to hear their perspectives.

         25                 We begin today with the Department of
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          2  Consumer of Affairs.  We welcome Commissioner Toole

          3  for being here.  Thank you so much Commissioner.

          4                 If you would please state your name

          5  for the record.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  Yes,

          7  my name is Pauline Toole.  Good morning, I am an

          8  Assistant Commissioner at the City's Department of

          9  Consumer Affairs.  I would like to apologize for my

         10  tardiness, I was at a Curriculum Conference at my

         11  daughter's school.  Commissioner Dykstra asked me to

         12  give you her good wishes, and to thank you for this

         13  opportunity to appear before the Committee today.

         14                 The bill you are considering, Intro.

         15  271, would prohibit the use of pre- recorded tours

         16  on licensed sightseeing buses in the City.

         17                 The Department does not currently

         18  have a position on this proposal, but we do question

         19  the need for it.

         20                 In other cities, you can go almost

         21  every where with pre- recorded tours.  You can visit

         22  graveyards on Halloween to check out haunted scenes.

         23    You can boat down the Thames accompanied by a pre-

         24  recorded tour.  You can travel through the Channel

         25  from England to France, or vice versa, from France

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  to England, and take a tour with a recorded

          3  commentary in many languages, including French,

          4  English, Spanish, Italian, Japanese, Dutch, or

          5  German.  And you can tour Rome at night and have a

          6  good meal guided by a pre- recorded tour, except at

          7  dinner.  Yesterday's New York Times described a

          8  harbor tour offered in New York City, people can

          9  learn historical facts and plain old trivia about

         10  sites, landmarks, and people along the harborfront.

         11                 Tourism is a key economic engine that

         12  propels the City's economy.  Direct visitor spending

         13  last year was $16 billion, which supported more than

         14  250,000 jobs in the City.  And while the largest

         15  group of visitors to the City are domestic

         16  travelers, foreign tourists visit us in large

         17  numbers, nearly 5 million international visitors

         18  last year.  These tourists are from many countries,

         19  34 percent are from countries where English is the

         20  primary language, but the remaining 66 percent hail

         21  from countries where English is a foreign language.

         22  They would be Japan, Germany, France, Italy, Mexico,

         23  Spain, and the Netherlands.

         24                 And, as famously has been said, New

         25  York City is a city of immigrants.  Immigration is
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          2  at its highest peak now since 1910, which had been

          3  the high point of immigration to our City. English

          4  is the primary language in only two of the fifteen

          5  top countries of origin for foreign born persons in

          6  the City.  Those are people from Jamaica and

          7  Trinidad/Tobago.  If these new, New Yorkers wish to

          8  take a tour, there is a strong probability that they

          9  could not learn about our City in Russian, Urdu,

         10  Albanian, or Bengali.  Yet pre- recorded tapes would

         11  provide that option.

         12                 Currently, there are seven tour bus

         13  companies licensed in New York City.  One of the

         14  eight offers guided tours in languages other than

         15  English.  All of these tours are offered by live

         16  guides.  The languages offered include German,

         17  French, Japanese, Italian, and Spanish.  The other

         18  tour bus companies either do not offer tours at all,

         19  they rent the buses to tour groups, or offer tours

         20  only in English.

         21                 For some reason, New York City has

         22  much less competition in the tour bus business

         23  sector than other world class cities.

         24                 What is the harm to city consumers,

         25  be they tourists or locals, in listening to a pre-
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          2  recorded tour?  And what would be the benefits?

          3                 Are there alternatives that would

          4  enhance competition, such as a combination of live

          5  and recorded tours?  If you travel to Rome, or Hong

          6  Kong, or London, or Paris, or Hanoi, you could

          7  choose either a taped or a live tour, or, in some

          8  instances a combination as your learned about those

          9  cities.

         10                 Would tour businesses be more

         11  competitive, giving consumers more choices, if the

         12  the companies offered taped tours in multiple

         13  languages?

         14                 We would urge the Council to tackle

         15  these questions as you continue examining this

         16  proposed local law.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank

         19  you Commissioner. Commissioner, specifically with

         20  Intro. 271, do you have any specific language

         21  problems, or problems with the language of it, you

         22  know, do you have specific issues with Intro 271 so

         23  we could address the specific problems that you may

         24  have with that?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  Well,

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  we are not certain that it is needed.  I mean, we

          3  are not sure what the problem is that is trying to

          4  be addressed.  And as we look at this industry and

          5  the tour guides in the City, we understand how a

          6  primarily English- speaking clientele is being

          7  addressed, but we do not understand how a clientele

          8  that is much more diverse is being catered to.  So,

          9  we were just wondering, and we are waiting to see

         10  your additional research to find out why this is

         11  something that is necessary in this industry.

         12                 I mean, as an out and out ban on

         13  tapes in tour buses, I think it is pretty straight

         14  forward.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And

         16  according to your testimony, we do have at least one

         17  guided bus tour that does offer other languages.  So

         18  the choice does exist for tourists who do come in.

         19  And, again, correct me if I am wrong, but you do

         20  agree that the services that are provided by our

         21  tour bus companies with the live operators doing the

         22  tour, they do provide a good service and they do a

         23  good job, correct?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE;  I

         25  think they probably do, I do not know I have never
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          2  actually taken one of those tours myself.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Because

          4  I would not want to see, why we would want to limit,

          5  curtail, or even eliminate a job done by an already,

          6  person who is doing a fine job already. So I do not

          7  know why we would want to eliminate that job.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE;  But, I

          9  think Councilman, that we are not sure that

         10  prohibiting, that allowing taped tours would

         11  eliminate jobs, because the exact experience in

         12  other world class cities is that you have these two

         13  methods of receiving information existing side by

         14  side.  And the tour guide and tour bus industries in

         15  those cities is vibrant.  So then we, we do not know

         16  that that would happen, and that is one of the

         17  reasons that we are not sure that this is a

         18  necessary step.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  But we

         20  have seen in the past in other industries, whether

         21  it be the banking industry, where things have become

         22  more automated, that we have seen decrease in jobs

         23  there.  Customer Service Jobs have decreased due to

         24  automation as the technology advances.  It is, I

         25  guess, possibly foreseeable, that if we do automate
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          2  these or put these tours on tape, that some jobs

          3  might be eliminated, in a time when our economy

          4  really needs to increase jobs, and help against the

          5  unemployment, as opposed to assisting the

          6  unemployment rate.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE;  Well

          8  we are certainly not supporting increased

          9  unemployment, but what we do wonder if that would

         10  happen.  And we know that the tour bus industry is

         11  going to speak, and thus far they do not do taped

         12  tours, for whatever reason, and maybe they can

         13  address economic issues that might arise.

         14                 But once again, I would suggest

         15  looking at those other cities to find out why, you

         16  know, you could have such a vibrant industry, but

         17  still permit taped tours.  And how, if we are going

         18  to, if the Council wants to ban taped tours, how all

         19  of these other newer immigrants would learn about

         20  this City, and how you would deal with, sort of, new

         21  groups of tourists?

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And

         23  Commissioner, again, in your testimony, you listed

         24  other, obviously, worldly cities, you know, England,

         25  and so forth, France having recorded commentary.
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          2  But I would like to think that New York City is a

          3  little different.  I would like to think that New

          4  York City is a better city, and obviously, a

          5  different place than those others. And I guess, due

          6  to it being so different, I think the flexibility

          7  exists with the live operator.

          8                 Wouldn't you agree that if we go to

          9  taped recordings for tours, that the lack of

         10  flexibility exists?  We had the similar issue when

         11  the Broadway shows were going to go to canned music,

         12  and obviously, live music is so much better because

         13  of the flexibility. I see a similar situation here,

         14  that wouldn't we lose flexibility if we go to a

         15  taped recording?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:  Right,

         17  well I think that the thing that would be lost is,

         18  if you were in tour bus and you could have an

         19  interaction, ask questions, and get answers from the

         20  tour guides.  So clearly, if you had a taped tour

         21  you could not do that.

         22                 But the other example might be

         23  museums that frequently offer taped packages to see

         24  the tour in a multitude of languages, yet still have

         25  tours led by those where you can have that
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          2  interaction.  As I understand it, you know, the

          3  number of people flocking to our museums is only

          4  increased.

          5                 We truly do not have a concrete view

          6  on this, but we are not sure that this is going to

          7  undercut the tour guide industry at all.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Well I

          9  appreciate your reference to a museum and trying to

         10  show a link between a museum tour and a bus tour, I

         11  can see many differences exist as well, the length

         12  of the tour, the number of people on the tour, the

         13  geographic layout of the tour.  I think there is a

         14  lot of differences with a museum tour that maybe a

         15  tape recording there may work.

         16                 But I think with a bus tour it is a

         17  little different.  I appreciate, also, your point

         18  with interaction. Again, with the live operator

         19  working the tour, given that it has flexibility, and

         20  given also that there is interaction, that is why I

         21  would like to, again, continue with the live.  And,

         22  I appreciate the language of Intro. 271.

         23                 Would you out and out say, and again,

         24  I am referring to my first question with regards to

         25  the language of 271, do you out and out say that you
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          2  just cannot support 271, or that you would like to

          3  see subsequent to this hearing whether there is a

          4  place for 271?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE;  The

          6  latter, in fact, in my statement I said, the

          7  Department does not have a position on the proposal;

          8  we do not oppose it; we do not support it.  But we

          9  really want to understand better why it is needed,

         10  and what the benefit would be to tourists and New

         11  Yorkers who want to learn about the City.  Because

         12  to us that it is completely unclear.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And you

         14  see one of the major hurdles, to an extent, would be

         15  the different languages.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE;  Yes.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:

         18  Commissioner, once again, I do appreciate your

         19  input, and we look forward to a further conversation

         20  on Intro. 271.

         21                 Thank you for your time.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE;  Thank

         23  you.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I

         25  appreciate your being here.
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          2                 Our next panel will be Andy Sydor

          3  from TWU 225, Peter Oratowski TWU 225, and Michael

          4  Koenig, okay, Michael Koenig, President of the

          5  Guides Association of New York City, gentlemen. We

          6  are also going to call up Carlos Padilla TWU, Local

          7  225 as well. Gentlemen, if you have pre- printed

          8  testimony, if you would hand that in to the

          9  Sergeant- at- Arms.  I am going to ask you state

         10  your full name for the record, and who you are

         11  representing today.

         12                 Just hit the button, hit the red

         13  button first.

         14                 MR. SYDOR:  There we go, okay.  I am

         15  Andy Sydor, I am the shop steward for tour guides at

         16  Gray Line Sightseeing, as well as the Gray Line

         17  Section Chairman for Transport Workers Union Local

         18  225.

         19                 MR. KOENIG:  My name is Mike Koenig.

         20  I am President of the Guides Association of New York

         21  City.

         22                 MR. ORATOWSKI:  My name is Peter

         23  Oratowski.  I am the Recording Secretary for Local

         24  225 of TWU.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.
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          2                 MR. SYDOR:  I call on the Council to

          3  pass the proposed legislation to mandate the

          4  presence of licensed guides on tour buses.  Taped

          5  tours are frequently used on tour buses in foreign

          6  venues, and loom as a constant threat to the quality

          7  of tours in New York City.  Just yesterday, an

          8  article in the New York Times described a new tour

          9  offering of a boat using a recorded tour, and not a

         10  live guide.  We do not feel that such a product

         11  would ever be suitable for giving tours of New York.

         12                 When New York was attacked on

         13  September 11, many wondered if the tourism industry

         14  would ever recover.  We at Gray Line, however, went

         15  back on the road a scant three days after the

         16  attack.  Even before the President of the United

         17  States reached this City, we were giving tours

         18  again.  This was at the behest of this City, which

         19  asked us to return to the streets of New York as

         20  part of the business as usual strategy put forth by

         21  the City in response to that historic crisis.  This

         22  became a great contribution to the rapid revival of

         23  this City, as well as a medium for visitors and

         24  well- wishers to demonstrate their support for, and

         25  belief, in this City.
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          2                 I still remember clearly my own first

          3  run after the attack, when I saw residents standing

          4  at a bus stop, at first looking at my bus in

          5  disbelief, and then applauding, not the usual

          6  response a tour bus gets from a New Yorker.

          7                 I also remember constant route

          8  changes, alerts, and diversions.  There was no

          9  manual for dealing with this, no preparation.  There

         10  could not possibly be such a thing.  You just had to

         11  dope out how to achieve the absurd task of giving a

         12  tour in the shadow of a cloud of smoke where once

         13  stood a major tourist attraction.  We winged it, and

         14  we improvised, and we talked amongst our colleagues

         15  to figure out how best to handle this situation.  It

         16  is beyond inconceivable that anyone could program a

         17  machine to have done the same.  After all, many tour

         18  venues failed to remove or adjust images of the

         19  World Trade Center from their promotions for long

         20  after the attack.  Most notorious was the simulated

         21  Skyride at the Empire State building, which not only

         22  retained the images of the Twin Towers in their film

         23  for many months after the attack, but still gave the

         24  rider the illusion of flying through them.

         25                 But even under normal circumstances,
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          2  it is inconceivable that anybody could program a

          3  machine to do what I do. It is not just providing a

          4  narration, it is pacing and re- pacing, editing and

          5  adjusting, coping and comprehending.  This City is

          6  an endless parade of surprises and non sequiturs,

          7  and anyone who claims that they could write a

          8  standard narrative that would suit all days and all

          9  situations simply does not know New York.

         10                 One could argue that the absurdity of

         11  canning New York is so great, when need not worry

         12  what tapes would ever be used, that common sense

         13  would prevent such a thing.  But the guides at Gray

         14  Line do worry, and with good reason.  Back in early

         15  2001, rumors arose that Gray Line New York

         16  Sightseeing was going to install recorded tours on

         17  their double- decker buses.  At this time, Gray Line

         18  had just bought out the notorious Apple Tours, and

         19  was going to re- open the company as an outlet of a

         20  new international tour company called City

         21  Sightseeing.  City Sightseeing specializes in taped

         22  tours, and its logo is a globe with a headset.

         23  Several of our buses were painted in the City

         24  Sightseeing livery, logo and all, and audio

         25  equipment was tested.  Fortunately for us, the
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          2  company reconsidered, but the possibility still

          3  hovers over us.

          4                 After all, we are owned by a

          5  multinational corporation, Stagecoach PLC based in

          6  Perth, Scotland.  They were the ones who first

          7  brought in the people from City Sightseeing, and

          8  that company still exists, and, while frustrated in

          9  their attempts to open a branch in New York, they

         10  have now expanded now 67 branches worldwide, 51 of

         11  which offer taped tours.  This includes a new branch

         12  in St. Louis, Missouri.  Issues of quality that

         13  would dissuade a local owner may not have much

         14  relevance to a foreign owner.  Frankly, we cannot

         15  expect the people in Perth, Scotland would have

         16  anymore concern for the quality of tourism in New

         17  York than people in New York care about tours in

         18  Perth, Scotland.

         19                 It is only through the establishment

         20  of local standards that we can hope to protect

         21  quality in New York's tourism industry. It cannot

         22  just be left to the market, the market will only

         23  respect the cheapest option they can get away with.

         24  This City is exceptional, and it is only the elected

         25  representatives of this exceptional city that can
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          2  protect its public presentation to the rest of the

          3  world.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank

          6  you, Andy.

          7                 MR. KOENIG:  I just addressing some

          8  of the points that you brought up with employment,

          9  and of course that is important to the membership of

         10  the Guides Association.  But, looking at it from the

         11  other side is the visitor, the tourist.  We speak a

         12  great deal about the importance of tourism in the

         13  City, we pay a lot of lip service.  But, what is

         14  going to be their experience when they come here?

         15                 The guide is vital to not only show

         16  off the City, but to interpret the City.  I always

         17  find it so amusing and many of the guys can tell

         18  you, to a Mid- westerner when they see a

         19  conservative Jew, you know what they say?  Oh you

         20  have a lot of Amish here.  They assume they are

         21  Amish.

         22                 Is that the Empire State?  No that is

         23  the Chrysler building.  Is that the Empire State?

         24  No that is 40 Wall Street. What is that?  That is

         25  the Empire State.  It is just amazing, what is a
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          2  nish?  That is a Kinish.  The questions that could

          3  not possibly be anticipated on a tape.

          4                 As far as different languages go, not

          5  only does one of the guides companies offer them,

          6  but our membership if you will look at our Web site,

          7  at theguidesassociationofnewyorkcity.com, you will

          8  see a full listing of almost 200 members with all

          9  the various languages that they offer.  So, groups

         10  coming into the City with different languages should

         11  have no trouble securing a guide.  As a matter of

         12  fact, New York City and Company could back this up,

         13  the greatest loss of tourism after 9/11 was foreign

         14  visitors.  So, right now a lot of our membership

         15  that are dealing in foreign languages, they are the

         16  ones hurting the most.  And they are the ones that

         17  if this proposal would not pass, if tapes were

         18  allowed, they would be the ones that were hurt the

         19  most.

         20                 Also, just to step aside for a

         21  second, with flight attendants, for example, on

         22  airplanes, many people think that their primary

         23  purpose is to serve peanuts, cocktails, and meals.

         24  The primary purpose of a flight attendant is safety.

         25    And on a sightseeing bus the tour guide, there is
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          2  two people on that bus at the moment, a driver and a

          3  tour guide.  The driver has his hands or her hands

          4  full.  So all the things that come up between

          5  passenger disputes of which seat is whose, lost

          6  items, all that type of stuff must be addressed by

          7  somebody, and that is where a tour guide comes in.

          8                 Not to mention the tragic events of

          9  9/11 that occurred so close to here, it is hard to

         10  look at the silver lining, but fortunately, that

         11  happened early enough in the morning where there

         12  were not dozens or hundreds of tour buses out on the

         13  street already.  What happens in the event of a

         14  tragedy, when you have all those buses out on the

         15  street?  You have got to keep the passengers calm,

         16  you have to know how to get out of there.  Now, yes,

         17  the driver, obviously, can be instrumental in that,

         18  but you need the guide, who is also excellent

         19  navigating the City and knowing how to get around,

         20  it is vital.

         21                 People have been terrorized, when we

         22  see all the police on the street with the sub-

         23  machine guns.  Do you know the fear that goes into a

         24  bus full of people?  What is going on are we in

         25  danger?  No, no, no, it is just the police, they are

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  doing random checks of different places, nothing to

          3  be concerned about. These are things that guides

          4  can, just really, calm down the passengers minds.

          5                 And just lastly, and humorous

          6  Garrancin Keeler said, that if there is a one in a

          7  million chance of something happening, it happens

          8  eight times a day in New York City.  So, that is the

          9  kind of thing that no tape could ever be prepared

         10  for.  You need the person on the bus, not only for

         11  our jobs, but for all the people that visit.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And,

         14  Mike, correct.  I am sorry.

         15                 MR. KOENIG:  Yes.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  For the

         17  record could you just state your name so we have the

         18  order of speakers.

         19                 MR. KOENIG:  Yes, my name is Michael

         20  Koenig.  K- O- E N- I- G.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank

         22  you Mike.  And now we have Pete.

         23                 MR. ORATOWSKI:  Hello, yes, I am

         24  Peter Oratowski.

         25                 Imagine a beautiful day, blue skies
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          2  and sunshine, a day off from work when you can sit

          3  back and relax on the top of an open bus and enjoy a

          4  drive through the streets and neighborhoods of New

          5  York.  If your lucky, before the bus pulls out, I

          6  will climb the stairs and take the guide's seat at

          7  the front of the bus.  And here is what you will

          8  hear me say.

          9                  "Ladies and gentlemen, my name is

         10  Peter.  I am from the best borough of New York City,

         11  Brooklyn, USA, and I need you to do two things for

         12  me today.  Number one, I need you to remain seated

         13  at all times between stops.  And number two, as we

         14  are moving along look all around you at the people

         15  on the streets, because I will point out the sights

         16  for you, but I could not possibly point out all the

         17  freaky and fascinating people walking around this

         18  town."

         19                 Tough room, it always gets a laugh.

         20                  "But, seriously,"  I will continue,

         21   "it is not the buildings, or the parks, or the art

         22  that makes this City great.  It is the people."

         23                 Now, speaking of great people, I wish

         24  you could meet some of the guides who work with me.

         25  It takes a great guide to give a great tour.  We
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          2  have got Ted Kem, for example, who will take you

          3  through the neighborhood where he grew up and make

          4  you feel like you have met every member of his

          5  family.  You have got Jimmy Napoli, who speaks so

          6  passionately about the history of New York as our

          7  nation's first capital, you would swear he marched

          8  down Broadway with Washington and his troops in July

          9  of 1776.  And then you have got Ray Rosato, who can

         10  make you laugh with his spot- on impressions of

         11  Brando or Pacino, and make you cry when he explains

         12  the immense tragedy of being a Mets fan in the

         13  hometown of the Yankees.

         14                 Could a recording do any of that?

         15  With all do respect to Kenneth Jackson or Jerry

         16  Stiller, or whatever celebrities they get to read

         17  the scripts, a tape cannot do justice to a city that

         18  is so vibrantly alive.  Can a tape point out the

         19  performance artists, or the professional dogwalkers,

         20  or the old woman who always stands on her stoop in

         21  Harlem and waves?  Can a tape guide you past the

         22  Dakota and share with you what it was like to be 12,

         23  when you heard that John Lennon had been taken from

         24  us? Or tell you what it was like to go to Strawberry

         25  Fields, when George Harrison passed on, and find
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          2  about 300 New Yorkers standing in a circle, singing

          3  Beatles' songs together?

          4                 I will be the first to admit that

          5  there are drawbacks to live guides.  We cost money

          6  and we complain, a lot. When a bus pulls up and all

          7  the seats are torn and wet, we complain.  When the

          8  wheel chair ramp does not work and we have to tell

          9  people to wait for the next bus, we complain about

         10  that.  Or when only half the speakers, or when only

         11  half the bus can hear us talk because the speakers

         12  do not work, or the speakers work but only half the

         13  time, we complain about that, too.  And, tapes do

         14  not complain.

         15                 I am a New York City tour guide,

         16  licensed by the Department of Consumer Affairs and

         17  certified by NYC and Company, the Tourist and

         18  Convention Bureau, and I consider it an honor and a

         19  pleasure to introduce people from around the country

         20  and the globe to the greatest city in the world.

         21  But, my livelihood is increasingly threatened by the

         22  advance of technology.

         23                 I am here to ask you to recognize the

         24  role we play as ambassadors to the rest of the

         25  world.  We are the ones who can put a human face,
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          2  with a smile no less, on a city that visitors might

          3  otherwise find too immense and impersonal to relate

          4  to on a human level.

          5                 Please give us your vote of support.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank

          8  you, Peter. Carlos, if you want to just pull up a

          9  chair, or switch.

         10                 MR. PADILLA:  My name is Carlos

         11  Padilla, President of Local 225.  I have been

         12  involved with Gray Line for many years now as a

         13  representative.  I am going to tell you a story of

         14  years ago.  I am bus driver for Short Line, and I

         15  did a lot of sightseeing tours, well I have driven

         16  for a long time.  But, I think Mr. Justin Ferate was

         17  one of my tour guides at one time.  I had a tour, a

         18  pick- up at the Waldorf Astoria.  And, we picked up

         19  these older women, from deep down south.  They get

         20  on the bus. They look at me.  They sit down.  My

         21  tour guide was a black man, and these woman were

         22  just looking at him, like you know.  And they

         23  probably figured that I was pick- pocket them, and

         24  my tour guide was going to mug them, you know.  They

         25  just had that uneasy feeling. But, I had an
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          2  extraordinary tour guide that took them to the City,

          3  showed them the different areas.  We took them up to

          4  Harlem, you know, well isn't that a ghetto?  No,

          5  Harlem is a very nice place, it is improving, it has

          6  come a long way.  We took them to Strivers Row.  We

          7  took them for a walk on 125th Street.  We went down

          8  Manhattan Avenue, showed them the beautiful

          9  Brownstones, the buildings being rebuilt.  Then we

         10  came down to Central Park and right a way, oh isn't

         11  that a bad place, you get mugged there and

         12  everything.  No, it is a real nice place.  So, we

         13  took them for a walk in there, and they came back.

         14  When we got back to the Waldorf Astoria, they did

         15  not scurry to the hotel like scared mice.  They

         16  stood out there with the tour guide, and they were

         17  asking him questions, and very excited, and there is

         18  something a tape cannot do.

         19                 And I believe that a tape will save a

         20  company a lot of money, because they will be able to

         21  cut down their tour guide staff to a very minimal

         22  amount of tour guides.  They will have a savings in

         23  salaries, pension, vacations, paid holidays.  I mean

         24  the savings is phenomenal for them.

         25                 The other thing about the language
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          2  barrier that, the Commissioner brought up, you know,

          3  if they are going to come this country, and they are

          4  here, every company will find a way to find someone

          5  that can speak that language, or make the

          6  arrangements. When you have a group that comes in

          7  from wherever, you know, Japan, or England, there

          8  are preparations made, and people kept on tap that

          9  speak certain, special languages, so they can

         10  actually show the City to a person.

         11                 So, and, I do not know, the City

         12  revamped their test for tour guides.  You know, they

         13  want knowledgeable people that can show the City in

         14  a good light to everybody.  And we are looking for

         15  this Council to protect that license and not replace

         16  it by a tape.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank

         19  you, Carlos. Mike, if you would just pull up your

         20  chair, because we are going to ask some questions to

         21  the panel, to the panel of the four of you, and each

         22  of you can answer.

         23                 MR. PADILLA:  Well they can probably

         24  answer them better because they are the backbone of

         25  the tour guide industry.
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          2  I am just a representative.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay,

          4  thank you, Carlos.  We have a question from my

          5  colleague, Council Member Koppell.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you,

          7  Chairman.  I do not quarrel with the idea that a

          8  live guide provides services that are beneficial,

          9  and indeed, in many respects, superior to a tape.

         10  However, with modern technology there are amazing

         11  things that can be done, for instance, I am sure,

         12  that a tape could provide a tour in numerous

         13  languages, perhaps unlimited languages, perhaps a

         14  hundred languages, because of new technology.

         15                 We just passed legislation in this

         16  Council requiring that constituent assistance be

         17  provided by City agencies, in I think, seven

         18  different languages to be expanded over time.  I

         19  think they say on 311 that you can get it in, I

         20  think, in a hundred languages, or whatever.

         21                 I recognize that what one of the

         22  gentlemen said, you know, when a group comes from

         23  Japan, you can get a Japanese guide, I would imagine

         24  if they came from anywhere you could get a guide in

         25  that language.  But, not everybody comes in a group.
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          2    You have individual tours coming in with the

          3  general lowering of air fares, and the increasing

          4  number of flights, and increasing prosperity around

          5  the world, more and more people are going to be

          6  coming to New York, individually from all over the

          7  place.

          8                 It is not possible to get a tour

          9  guide that speaks all these languages.  Why should

         10  we not provide, admittedly, it is inferior to a live

         11  guide, but why should we not permit the installation

         12  of a device that would provide a tour by turning a

         13  dial, like you do on the TV's or the programs on the

         14  plane where you have a bunch of different planes on

         15  one, why shouldn't we be able to provide that, which

         16  I imagine if it is not now available, it will be

         17  available soon in ten or fifteen languages, that

         18  could play on the bus for those people who do not

         19  understand English? Why shouldn't we be able to

         20  provide that?

         21                 MR. SYDOR:  Well, let me explain

         22  something about that.  You can look at other

         23  countries where they offer some of these things, and

         24  even look at some past companies in New York that

         25  tried to offer these things.  I mean, frankly, you
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          2  are talking about a device that is much more

          3  sophisticated than what you actually get.

          4                 I remember I worked at New York Apple

          5  Tours for a time, for almost a year.  They had a

          6  multi- lingual bus.  It provided nine languages on

          7  it.  However, we found out from customers that some

          8  of these translations were questionable at best.

          9  But, we could tell by just hearing them ourselves

         10  that some of them would kind of drop off, the

         11  English translation was not fully translated.   And,

         12  also we could listen to the English translation

         13  itself, and frankly, the tour given was highly

         14  inaccurate and off the wall.

         15                 Part of the problem is, you are

         16  actually giving up supervision of the industry when

         17  you pass onto a technological standpoint.  You know,

         18  you do license guides, and the DCA has supervisory

         19  capacity over those guides, they have no standard

         20  for supervisory capacity over these products.  You

         21  know, a dirty little fact, a lot of us tour guides

         22  realize is when you go to like your New York section

         23  of your bookstore, a lot of those manuals that you

         24  buy are actually full of inaccuracies,

         25  misinformation, what not. One of the things that we
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          2  correct ourselves in is these little fictoids that

          3  get repeated over and over again.

          4                 As far as the frequency of languages

          5  too, I mean they generally order a standard template

          6  of languages, which are not only can you find live

          7  guides, you can easily find guides, the more obscure

          8  languages are really provided for by making sure

          9  that live guides are in the mix.  I know one person

         10  who works with Gray Line, not as a tour guide, he is

         11  a ticket seller, but he is a licensed guide, his

         12  name is Lusaka Lusika (phonetic), he is African.  He

         13  speaks a number of African languages and works

         14  several times a year when African groups come in.

         15                 It is, frankly, not really feasible

         16  for a large company making a product, that to cover

         17  these more obscure languages.  But the fact is, that

         18  you can find any language spoken in New York, and

         19  actually help that person become a tour guide.  He

         20  has his own financial incentive for doing that.  So,

         21  the thing is by saying we are trying to help foreign

         22  speakers by providing machines, we are actually

         23  giving them a banal, unsupervised product, that is

         24  actually not connecting with as many speakers of the

         25  more obscure languages, as promoting the live guide
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          2  concept.

          3                 You can look at the GANYC Web site,

          4  and you will see offered now, you can call these

          5  people up, you can send them an e mail, a far

          6  greater variety of languages than any tour bus has

          7  ever provided on their buses.  I mean, by the factor

          8  of many times over. And that is going to be the

          9  factor.  It costs too much money for a company to

         10  really develop something in Urdu, or some more

         11  obscure language.  They are only going to go for the

         12  basic four to ten languages that are widely spoken

         13  already.

         14                 MR. KOENIG:  And, I was going to say,

         15  while ultimately it might be under the guise of

         16  trying to provide more obscure languages, tours for

         17  more obscure languages, the ultimate reason is to

         18  try to get it into the English, to try to get into

         19  the more common languages.  This is where tour

         20  companies make their money, the English speaker, the

         21  Spanish, the Italian, the French. So to say, well we

         22  are concerned that someone from some smaller

         23  country, they are not going to be able to see New

         24  York, it really does not hold water.  They are

         25  looking to get into the bigger markets, I really
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          2  believe that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Since I have

          4  you here, did they revise the test for guides after

          5  the hearings we held, I guess, it was about a year

          6  ago?

          7                 MR. KOENIG:  Yes they did.

          8                 MR. SYDOR:  Well they had already

          9  done the revision but, the thing is what the change

         10  was, was that we were grand fathered in, and they

         11  lowered the passing score.  So the test is still

         12  the, it was revised.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Well that is

         14  good to hear. At least our hearing had some good

         15  affect.

         16                 MR. SYDOR:  Quite the dramatic

         17  affect.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I thought

         19  the points made by you at that hearing, not you

         20  necessarily, I do not remember who was there, but

         21  they were very well taken.

         22                 MR. KOENIG:  Right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you

         24  for coming today.

         25                 MR. KOENIG:  And this is equally
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          2  important to us. Thank you.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank

          4  you, Council Member Koppell.  Let's just stake on

          5  the issue of language for a moment.  Not to

          6  discredit any of these percentages I am going to ask

          7  about, but, or where these tourists come from, but

          8  can we give a possible percentage of, what

          9  percentage of your customers are domestic from other

         10  parts of the country, as opposed to a percentage

         11  that is foreign from other countries?  What

         12  percentage is your customers?

         13                 MR. KOENIG:  I honestly do not know

         14  the exact numbers.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Roughly

         16  now.  Would you say a majority of which are?

         17                 MR. KOENIG:  The vast majority is

         18  English- speaking.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  The vast

         20  majority.

         21                 MR. KOENIG:  And even somewhat to the

         22  embarrassment of many Americans, it is shocking, you

         23  will get a group of Germans in that speak perfect

         24  English.  They want an English guide.  They want to

         25  practice their English.  They want to hear it.  So,
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          2  it is not unusual, I mean, of course America is the

          3  biggest probably single country coming to New York

          4  City, Canada is right behind them, England very,

          5  very large.  But, the major countries, the major

          6  languages, Spanish, French, Italian, Japanese, are

          7  all well covered by tour guides.

          8                 But definitely without a doubt

          9  English is the overwhelming language requested and

         10  given in tours.

         11                 MR. SYDOR:  There is a point I want

         12  to make too about, you know, multi- lingual

         13  offerings.  I know from people I know at New York

         14  Waterway, where they do have a live guide giving the

         15  tour in English, but they also offer multi- lingual

         16  offerings, what they have told me is that typically

         17  they start by listening on their headsets in their

         18  foreign language, and they see the guide doing his

         19  tour and all that.  And by the, half way through

         20  they have taken it off, and follow along in English

         21  because that is a more just dynamic experience for

         22  them.

         23                 I mean, frankly, if you offer the

         24  multi- lingual, it might create a marketing pressure

         25  to, let's say it would always look like an inferior
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          2  product.  It always would be an inferior product.

          3                 Again, too, as far as needing

          4  languages at Gray Line too, almost no recruiting

          5  effort because New York City is such a diverse city,

          6  while we have our standard, we are now up to five

          7  languages that we offer, we just started offering

          8  Japanese this year.  Again, we were not able to get

          9  Japanese guides so they found some Japanese speakers

         10  and made them guides.  And we trained them and they

         11  got their licenses, and you know, we added a couple

         12  of people to the workforce that way.

         13                 But beyond that, we have people who,

         14  should we ever need a service order, a charter for

         15  foreign language we have people that speak, already,

         16  Russian, Servo- Croatian, Polish, Chinese, various

         17  African languages, we already have these people

         18  working in the guide force already, who are not

         19  doing the regular daily thing, but they are always

         20  there, if Gray Line needs them.  And Gray Line did

         21  not even have to put out the shingle for that, you

         22  know, that is just an aspect of the tourism, the

         23  guide core in this City.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  A little

         25  bit more on the language, is there a difference in
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          2  cost in providing different languages as opposed to

          3  English- speaking operators?  Does it cost more to

          4  do the tour in a different language at all, or is it

          5  minimal?

          6                 MR. KOENIG:  No, I mean as guides we

          7  are independent contractors, we are able to set fees

          8  as we see.  But there is a standard range that they

          9  fall upon.  So, to the best of my knowledge, no

         10  additional expense for any language.  Some specialty

         11  tours they might charge a little bit more for, but

         12  in general a tour is a tour, is a tour.

         13                 MR. SYDOR:  There is a slightly

         14  higher charge at Gray Line for the foreign language

         15  product.  Although, it includes, they can follow up,

         16  because that is often on a coach bus, and then they

         17  follow up the next day with a regular double- decker

         18  product. But we are talking only a few dollars of

         19  expense to the consumer.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay,

         21  few, few dollars, minimal.

         22                 MR. SYDOR:  Less than five, yes.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.

         24  If we can move onto the issue of jobs.  Actually, I

         25  think it was Andy who just mentioned that you
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          2  actually increased jobs by hiring different

          3  translators, which is interesting.  But what we

          4  mentioned earlier, actually, in the opening

          5  statement that about 1,300 jobs are possibly at

          6  jeopardy.  Is that an accurate statement?

          7                 MR. SYDOR:  Well that is based on the

          8  number of licensed guides.  I mean that includes a

          9  whole range of work relationships.  Some people work

         10  occasionally, some work full time. So, the 1,300 is

         11  based on the, actually, last years figure of how

         12  many licensed guides there were.

         13                 Unfortunately, the DCA, while they

         14  post their information, they have not updated their

         15  list since last April. So, it took a dip when they

         16  had the, there was turnover last March, and it took

         17  a dip to just over 1,000.  But I know for a fact the

         18  number has risen greatly from that.  But because

         19  they have not given me the updated information, I

         20  cannot give it to you.

         21                 But the thing is of that you might

         22  figure maybe, I would say about half are in a more

         23  full- time working capacity.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay,

         25  and would it be safe to say that if we do go to a
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          2  taped narration, that the tape narration would have

          3  some negative affect on those jobs?

          4                 MR. KOENIG:  Most definitely.  Most

          5  definitely.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  That is

          7  a safe statement.

          8                 MR. KOENIG:  And, not in the esoteric

          9  languages.  We are talking about where the money is,

         10  English, Spanish, French, Italian.

         11                 MR. SYDOR:  To bottom line it for, I

         12  mean I work for Gray Line, that is sort of the

         13  biggest company out there right now. We have full-

         14  and part- time about 150 guides working there.  If

         15  they were to find a way to eliminate that and

         16  replace them with, you know, cheaper bus monitors or

         17  something, that is basically 150 people that would

         18  be put out of work.  And there is not, once you get

         19  below Gray Line, you get to much smaller companies.

         20  You go from the staff of 150 to a small company with

         21  a staff of maybe four.  So, there is not really,

         22  there is not really, the industry, as NYC and

         23  Company was just pointing out, there is not really a

         24  lot of competition going out there right now.  So,

         25  the industry is not ready to absorb any loss there.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  A

          3  question with regards to possibly the smaller

          4  companies.  How would the tape narration help,

          5  possibly help the smaller companies?  Do you think

          6  that is a possibility?

          7                 MR. SYDOR:  No, because I have heard

          8  this thing that say oh small companies might be able

          9  to get up with this.  The thing to remember with

         10  tapes is while there is a lower cost in long- term

         11  expenses, there is a tremendous cost in start- up

         12  expenses.  That is the thing, that is why you would

         13  not see the more obscure languages.  I mean, there

         14  is a tremendous start- up cost that your accountant

         15  would say would not be justified by coming up with a

         16  translation in Afghani, or something like that.

         17                 So, the small companies would

         18  actually probably be squeezed out by this, because

         19  if you had a market for this product they would

         20  probably charge a very exorbitant rate to install in

         21  the systems.  It would probably be beyond what the

         22  small companies could afford.  They would be

         23  squeezed out and lose business to these companies

         24  that would then be able to buy more buses and

         25  expand, because they did not have the labor cost
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          2  anymore.  It would actually, I think, in the long

          3  run be very hurtful for the small companies to allow

          4  this kind of system to be put into play.

          5                 MR. KOENIG:  Ironically, a lot of

          6  small companies, one of their fortes is the guide.

          7  They are trying to put forth, we have this special

          8  person, or we have built a reputation on our guides.

          9

         10                 Also, when you talk about the number

         11  of people employed, while it might be, as Andy said,

         12  half the figure, please do not underestimate the

         13  number of independent contractors that are foreign

         14  language guides, and then as a part of their living,

         15  many independent contractors are making money the

         16  best they can.  So, they will be a tour guide, they

         17  will be translating.  I have one that goes to a

         18  hospital and does translations for the hospital.  So

         19  these multi- lingual guides are spreading themselves

         20  in so many different areas of the City.  And even

         21  though guiding might not be their full- time

         22  occupation, it is a very, very important part of

         23  their income.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Right,

         25  interesting. Two more points.
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          2                 MR. KOENIG:  Sure.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:

          4  Interaction, I believe Mike had mentioned it about

          5  the safety issue.  How important or how large a part

          6  does the interaction of a live operator play in

          7  safety issues?  Do you think it is a very big issue

          8  to the safety?

          9                 MR. SYDOR:  Well it is absolutely

         10  essential in double- decker touring, I think that is

         11  one of the reasons why, while Gray Line was looking

         12  at this they kind of dropped the project.  The

         13  driver does not see what is going on up there, and

         14  when you are, if you are tooling down Fifth Avenue,

         15  which has an ungodly number of low tree branches,

         16  you need somebody who has his eye on the limb, to

         17  advise the driver to, you know, slow it down, or

         18  take it over to the left a little bit.

         19                 You know, some things happen too with

         20  weather and what not, and you have to guide people.

         21  Also, our tours, bless them, if I was not up there

         22  making sure they were in their seats, they would

         23  have a lot of unpleasant encounters with traffic

         24  lights. So, certainly in that, but the thing is even

         25  with, I think, with coach buses and the more
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          2  standard offerings of the smaller companies, you

          3  know, the whole thing of running a bus, someone gets

          4  sick maybe, someone is this, someone is that, maybe

          5  someone is talking in the back and you need to kind

          6  of make peace there, this is not something that a

          7  driver, who is suppose be making sure the tape thing

          8  is going on at the same time, can really deal with

          9  himself when he is dealing with the entity known as

         10  New York traffic.

         11                 I mean that is why we have the

         12  original rules saying the driver cannot give the

         13  tour.

         14                 MR. KOENIG:  There is also times the

         15  City, while it is undesirable, there is times that

         16  it is virtually necessary to get the people off with

         17  the door on the traffic side.  For example, at the

         18  World Trade Center site, many times due to the MTA

         19  using the proper side of the street, we have to go

         20  to the left side of Church Street.  So, this entails

         21  the customer getting off into traffic. So, what the

         22  guide does is provide the heightened sense of danger

         23  I mean, I joke with them I say, if you get hit by a

         24  car, I will get yelled at, so please be careful.

         25  But, you are standing at the door with your back
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          2  watching, you are, in essence, a traffic cop for

          3  that moment for that group.  You tell them you do

          4  not get off the bus, you do not get on the bus,

          5  unless I am standing there.

          6                 But, just the guide being there,

          7  providing that heightened sense of awareness makes

          8  all the difference in the world.  A month ago, I had

          9  a 12- year- old girl go into a seizure on the tour.

         10  So, these are things, you cannot have a guide

         11  driving the bus and a girl seizing in the back, I

         12  mean, action has to be taken now.  Within eight

         13  minutes we had a fire truck, an ambulance there, and

         14  it was a happy ending.  But, these things happen on

         15  tour buses, and they must be addressed immediately

         16  by a person, and not the driver, he is pretty busy.

         17                 MR. SYDOR:  Let me use Mike's point

         18  here to segway into my last point and that is

         19  inflexibility, an illness, a road closure, the City

         20  is constantly changing - -

         21                 MR. ORATOWSKI:  Even visibility

         22  issues, I mean, yesterday I am doing an express tour

         23  there was no New York skyline yesterday.  So, I

         24  talked more about the docks, and New Jersey, and

         25  what not but this was an express run down the
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          2  highway.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  So,

          4  again, if you can just give an input or a statement

          5  on the lack of flexibility that obviously a tape

          6  narration may have, any thoughts on that?

          7                 MR. KOENIG:  Well, a good example

          8  happened to us Saturday, and we stopped at the

          9  Winter Garden, now with a taped narration you would

         10  say okay stop here, whatever the tape might say, the

         11  next bus will be around or come back in whatever the

         12  time frame might be.  So, we stopped and the bus

         13  left.  And I had a group of very, very old British

         14  Seniors, two in a wheel chair, one walking at to

         15  crawl.  So we get them into the Winter Garden, they

         16  use the facilities, I come out to see if my bus is

         17  there, the police have closed the street.  Closed,

         18  and there was no warning, there was no way in the

         19  world I could have possibly known that street is

         20  going to be closed, but now I have a problem.

         21  Fortunately, I have a cell phone, and I have a bus

         22  driver's phone number.  I had to call her, bring her

         23  down West Street, have her park there and bring all

         24  my people out the front.

         25                 I mean other than that, these people
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          2  would just be standing there totally befuddled.  So,

          3  I mean that is just one of thousands of instances

          4  that happen every year.

          5                 MR. SYDOR:  We just got through UN

          6  week, which is an annual event, which everyone in

          7  the tourism loves dearly.  Just keep reminding

          8  ourselves for world peace.  But, with our route we

          9  have a standard stop at the UN, of course, we do not

         10  get there at all, but the whole thing is like, we

         11  were literally told by our dispatcher, okay you are

         12  going to turn on 23rd Street, and you either going

         13  to go up Third Avenue, Madison Avenue, or Sixth

         14  Avenue, depending on what the police tell you.

         15                 I mean, so I have to be ready, I have

         16  a tour for Third Avenue, Madison Avenue, or Sixth

         17  Avenue, as the case may be, so it has to adjust.

         18  And then also, with UN week it is not just the zone

         19  around the UN, but the Delegate is staying at the

         20  Plaza, or the St. Regis, or the Holiday Inn,

         21  depending on his GNP.  You know, they have to move

         22  them from one place to another, suddenly, something

         23  gets cut off, and your sent some place else, and you

         24  have to basically keep the show going through these

         25  various detours.
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          2                 I have been detoured through all

          3  parts of this City, and I have to be ready for that.

          4    Again, someone doing start- up on a recording

          5  would not do that, you know, they would just say,

          6  well it is tough, we lost the route, and just keep

          7  talking about, you know, here comes the United

          8  Nations, even though you are going up Sixth Avenue.

          9  So, that is the kind of flexibility we have to deal

         10  with, always.  And, you know, again, visibility

         11  issues, you cannot see something, talk about

         12  something else, you know.

         13                 Frankly, you look at your audience

         14  and you are talking about architecture and you see

         15  them nodding off, then you talk about celebrities

         16  instead.  It is all trying to read your audience,

         17  reflect the audience, and have some kind of

         18  relationship with them.  That is all about the

         19  flexibility.  And some things you cannot predict.  I

         20  mean, again, yesterday when I was doing this, it was

         21  just kind of great these examples came up so close

         22  to this hearing, but I am doing this express run

         23  down the highway to Battery Park, and this guy from

         24  Missouri says, do you know about the Orphan Trains?

         25  Now fortunately, I do know about the Orphan Trains.
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          2  I am not going to go into it now, but you know I was

          3  able to answer the question, and I looked damn

          4  impressive doing it.  But who would predict that

          5  someone during a quick run down the West Side

          6  Highway would want to know about the Orphan Trains.

          7  So, you know, nobody would predict that.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Well,

          9  gentlemen, I do appreciate your time and testimony

         10  today, thank you very much, and we will probably

         11  keep in touch on this issue.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 MR. KOENIG:  Thank you.

         14                 MR. SYDOR:  Thank you.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Our next

         16  panel, call Matthew Aaronson, Gray Line New York Bus

         17  Tours and Coach USA, and Donna Keren from New York

         18  City and Company.  Donna?

         19                 Thank you for being here today.  If

         20  you would please state your full name and your

         21  affiliation, and give your testimony.

         22                 MR. AARONSON:  Matthew Aaronson,

         23  Attorney for Jenkens and Gilchrist Parker Chapin, we

         24  represent Gray Line New York Tours and Coach USA.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Could I ask
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          2  you to move the microphone right in front of your

          3  mouth the way mine is so we can hear you better.

          4                 MR. AARONSON:  Okay, is that better?

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Perfect.

          6                 MR. AARONSON:  Okay.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Go

          8  ahead.

          9                 MR. AARONSON:  I am submitting

         10  comments today on behalf of Tom Lewis, the President

         11  of Gray Line New York Tours. Tom wanted to be here

         12  today, but, unfortunately, he is out of town, and

         13  had asked me to come and make his comments for him.

         14  Tom would like to thank you for allowing him to come

         15  and render comments today.

         16                  "Gray Line is one of the largest

         17  sightseeing, transportation operations in New York

         18  City, and is owned by Coach USA.  Coach USA also

         19  owns twelve other transportation operations in New

         20  York and New Jersey.  Coach USA applauds the efforts

         21  of the Committee to search for new ways to ensure

         22  that the sightseeing offerings to tourists and

         23  visitors to the City remain at the highest level of

         24  professionalism and superior quality.

         25                 While the proposed legislation would
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          2  not have an immediate impact on Gray Line, or the

          3  various tours and sightseeing services Gray Line

          4  offers, we would like the Committee to consider the

          5  necessity of this new legislation.

          6                 We feel that the proposed legislation

          7  is not needed at this time.  Existing legislation

          8  protects the public by requiring that only licensed

          9  tour guides provide tours on sightseeing buses that

         10  visit points of interest in the City. Beyond the

         11  requirement for having licensed tour guides, the

         12  market forces should be left unhindered to allow the

         13  private sector to offer the most up- to- date

         14  products and keep up with offerings in the

         15  international tourism market.  We believe that

         16  visitors to the City should make the determination

         17  as to the type of narration they would prefer, and

         18  vote among competitors with their tourist dollars.

         19                 Second, mandating narration in this

         20  fashion may prevent bilingual visitors from enjoying

         21  a more meaningful sightseeing experience.  Recorded

         22  tour narration has been used extensively in Europe

         23  for many years, and continues to provide a tourist

         24  friendly method in providing narration in an

         25  unlimited number of languages.  Denying the use of
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          2  existing technology, as well as, unknown future

          3  advances in technology could limit the tour

          4  experience, not enhance it.  Products currently

          5  available provide the ability to have a live guide

          6  narrate to those on board who speak English, but

          7  also allow non- English speaking persons to hear a

          8  pre- recorded narration on headphones.  These pre-

          9  recorded narrations could be reviewed to ensure a

         10  quality product in line with the narration given by

         11  live tour guides.

         12                 We feel that the Committee should not

         13  recommend that such a pin- pointed change, that is

         14  not aimed at curing a current deficiency in the

         15  system, be enacted.  The proposed legislation does

         16  not address any concerns to public health or safety

         17  that are lacking in the current legislation.

         18                 Once again we would like to thank you

         19  for the opportunity, letting us provide you with

         20  some of our initial thoughts on this issue."

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank

         22  you Mr. Aaronson. Ms. Keren.

         23                 MS. KEREN:  Good afternoon council

         24  members.  My name is Donna Keren, I am the Senior

         25  Director for - -  Am I echoing, or is it just in my
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          2  own ear?  Okay. - -   Senior Director for Policy and

          3  Research at NYC and Company, New York City's

          4  official tourism and marketing organization.

          5  Together with our 1,700 member businesses, cultural

          6  organizations, and corporate partners, our goal is

          7  to build New York City's economy through our efforts

          8  in tourism development, major events, and

          9  promotions, and our role as the City's convention

         10  and visitors bureau.  Each day we work to market New

         11  York to the world, and to bring visitors of all

         12  types into our City to experience the tourism

         13  resources to be found in all five boroughs.

         14                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         15  address this important hearing on the City's

         16  licensed sightseeing buses.

         17                 New York City's travel and tourism

         18  industry holds an important place in the current

         19  economical vitality of the City and can be a

         20  valuable tool powering future economic development.

         21  At NYC and Company, we believe that the tremendous

         22  diversity and extraordinary scope of the City's

         23  tourism resources offer the greatest opportunity to

         24  expand the economic impact of business and leisure

         25  visitor spending, spending that reaches into all
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          2  sectors and levels of the City's economy.  The

          3  majority of the tourism related businesses that

          4  benefit from this spending are small businesses,

          5  that are located in communities across the entire

          6  City. Many of them owned and operated by New York

          7  City entrepreneurs.

          8                 As New York City begins the slow

          9  climb back toward a flourishing tourism economy,

         10  recovering from the terrible effects of 9/11, we

         11  need to nurture the growth and expansion of locally

         12  grown and based businesses in all sectors of

         13  hospitality, tourism, and visitor services.

         14                 As you have already heard, in 2003

         15  New York City received over 37 million visitors from

         16  origin markets the world over.  While only 13

         17  percent of these visitors come from another country,

         18  these nearly five million travelers account for

         19  almost 40 percent of the direct visitor spending in

         20  the City each year.  In 2002, the last year for

         21  which we have data, this meant an economic impact

         22  for the City of over $8 billion in spending on

         23  accommodations, transportation, food, shopping,

         24  sightseeing, recreation, and entertainment, as well

         25  as supporting services and suppliers at businesses
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          2  and attractions in all five boroughs.

          3                 At 2002 levels, this $21 billion

          4  economic impact meant a quarter of a million jobs in

          5  all five boroughs, accounting for seven and a half

          6  percent of the total labor force in the City.

          7  Currently, travel and tourism is the City's fifth

          8  largest employer. This generated $6.5 billion in

          9  payroll, much of which stays in our City as spending

         10  and taxes, because our workers also tend to live in

         11  the City.  And an additional $3 billion in federal,

         12  state, and city taxes, including 800 million to the

         13  City alone.

         14                 Each of you is familiar with the

         15  multiple challenges to travel and tourism over the

         16  past few years.  Things that just, the national

         17  terror alerts, the constant orange alert status in

         18  New York, and then last year's perfect storm

         19  combination of economic uncertainty, volatile

         20  consumer confidence, SARS, and uneasy business

         21  travel environment, Visa and Border regulations, and

         22  so on.

         23                 From January to May of last year,

         24  world and local events meant that international

         25  travel contracted sharply, school groups cancelled
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          2  their tours and trips, other tour groups cancelled

          3  visits, and sightseers cut back on their

          4  itineraries, the cultural organizations had fewer

          5  visitors.

          6                 Even with a turnaround in some of

          7  these areas and the prospect of good news on the

          8  tourism front, this year, there is still much to do

          9  to help both travel and tourism businesses and the

         10  City prosper.

         11                 Therefore, it is this context that

         12  NYC and Company would like to comment on Intro. 271.

         13                 New York City has long championed the

         14  notion of providing the best tourism experience for

         15  all our visitors.  In line with this, NYC and

         16  Company supported the City's efforts to license

         17  buses and tour guides.  NYC and Company strongly

         18  encourages the use of live, licensed guides whenever

         19  possible and appropriate. For the past few years,

         20  NYC and Company has offered ancillary programs that

         21  enhance the tour guides' capacity to create tours

         22  and guide tourists around the City.

         23                 We also work closely with Borough

         24  President's offices and community organizations to

         25  promote tourism across the entire City landscape,
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          2  from lower Manhattan and Chinatown to Harlem, East

          3  Harlem, and Washington Heights in Manhattan, and to

          4  all points in the Bronx, Brooklyn, Queens, and

          5  Staten Island.

          6                 As a result, we are concerned that

          7  the proposed amendments under consideration here

          8  today would severely limit the growth and

          9  development of sightseeing opportunities for new

         10  tourist destinations, especially in the boroughs,

         11  and cut short our ability to provide the widest

         12  possible services to our returning and increasingly

         13  diverse international visitors.

         14                 As currently proposed, the

         15  requirement that tour narration shall not be

         16  provided on a video tape, audio tape, compact disc,

         17  or through any other digital electronic,

         18  computerized, or similar means, would mean that many

         19  tour companies and sightseeing guides, excuse me,

         20  would prohibit many tour companies and sightseeing

         21  guides from providing the full- service and value

         22  that their customers desire.

         23                 Let me quickly take you through three

         24  examples of the ways this amendment would seriously

         25  limit the development of tourism businesses in New
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          2  York City, and might even force numerous small

          3  businesses to close completely.

          4                 First, as written, the amendment

          5  would prevent creative uses of 21st Century multi-

          6  media resources to enhance the visual, auditory, and

          7  learning experiences associated with sightseeing

          8  tours.  You may be familiar with an organization

          9  called Hush Tours, a hip hop look at New York, which

         10  is a member of NYC and Company.  Founded by New

         11  Yorker, Debra Harris, Hush Tours explores three

         12  decades of the New York City hip hop music scene,

         13  with guided visits to the Graffiti Wall, Midtown

         14  Manhattan, landmarks in music history, across Harlem

         15  and the Bronx.  Tour participants get to see, hear,

         16  and feel the true elements of hip hop with celebrity

         17  guides, and a unique live audio system, that

         18  founder, Deb Harris says, "really helps maximize the

         19  experience."

         20                 Under the current wording, this kind

         21  of interactive and multi- media presentation of the

         22  sounds of New York City would not be permitted, and

         23  could drive one of the City's young entrepreneurs

         24  out of business.

         25                 New York is culturally the most
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          2  diverse city in the world.  We are also the host to

          3  the greatest number of overseas visitors to the

          4  United States.  They come from more than 100

          5  countries.  Many of our tour buses have multi-

          6  lingual guides as you have heard, and can reach out

          7  to support Spanish, Japanese, French, German,

          8  Chinese, Korean, Russian, and more.  However, as

          9  currently worded, the amendment would make it

         10  impossible to offer the secondary audio translation

         11  services to support multi- lingual audiences for

         12  mixed groups or smaller visitor markets, or as

         13  Council Member Koppell mentioned, the individual

         14  tourists. Languages such as Flemish, Dutch, Hebrew,

         15  Swedish, or Polish are just a few of our increasing

         16  visitor markets, that together count for several

         17  hundred thousand visitors a year.

         18                 Additionally, multi- generational

         19  families, one of the fastest growing segments of the

         20  travel market are often multi lingual families.  A

         21  prohibition on the use of audio support would

         22  require family members to take separate tours, or

         23  limit the experience and enjoyment of all the

         24  sightseers.

         25                 Third, as I previously mentioned, New
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          2  York City tourism businesses understands that our

          3  City is a city of five distinct boroughs, and

          4  according to Dan Doctoroff, this morning, 300

          5  neighborhoods, I thought it was more, but I will

          6  settle for 300.  This is a fact and a resource we at

          7  NYC celebrate.  And we work in collaboration with

          8  local groups and businesses to promote tourism City-

          9  wide.  As boroughs and neighborhoods become more

         10  popular tourist destinations, there will be more

         11  opportunities for sightseeing tours.  However,

         12  initially while we grow this market, many of these

         13  may be on smaller tour buses, and the simple

         14  economies of scale may make it economically

         15  impossible to staff all the tours with live

         16  narration, especially in multiple languages. As

         17  currently worded, the amendment could push the

         18  borough and neighborhood tourism initiatives into

         19  undesirable choices, either abandoning their efforts

         20  to bring sightseeing tours, or having to choose

         21  unlicensed tour operators, that will run on smaller

         22  routes, or out source their sightseeing

         23  opportunities to companies from outside our City.

         24                 NYC and Company looks forward to

         25  working with the City Council and the Department of
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          2  Consumer Affairs to address these issues, and help

          3  increase the impact of tourism, and spread visitor

          4  spending to all parts of New York City.

          5                 And because I work for a marketing

          6  organization I have one last plug.  This Saturday

          7  and Sunday in Battery Park, NYC and Company is

          8  hosting our fourth annual Culture Fest, a free,

          9  family- friendly celebration of the City's

         10  magnificent cultural offerings.  More than 100

         11  organizations from all five boroughs will be on

         12  display from 11:30 to 5 on both days.  We will look

         13  forward to seeing all of you there, and I have

         14  flyers for anybody who wants.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thanks

         17  for the commercial.  I appreciate your time and

         18  testimony.

         19                 Couple of questions, and we are going

         20  to actually ask you to give some of your feelings on

         21  items that we have, obviously, had a discussion with

         22  prior panels.

         23                 First, with the cost, is there a cost

         24  factor with the difference between a live operator

         25  and a taped narration?  Is there any cost
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          2  differential?

          3                 MR. AARONSON:  I am not sure that I

          4  actually, thank you.  I am not sure that I am

          5  actually able to fully answer that question.  Tom is

          6  the really the person that would answer that

          7  question.  But my understanding is that there is a

          8  cost in installing this new technology, which I

          9  might advise that is actually currently available in

         10  a system that would really work at this point.  The

         11  concern is what is on the horizon in a couple of

         12  years.  So, the cost in a couple of years, we are

         13  not really sure. But, there is a cost involved in

         14  installing them in the vehicles and obviously,

         15  however many languages you want to have set up.

         16                 So, I cannot really speak to what the

         17  cost is compared to having live tour guides, at this

         18  point.  I am not sure that anybody really knows what

         19  the technology will cost in a couple years.  At this

         20  time, I am advised that it does not really exist in

         21  a form that would be suitable.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Again,

         23  then let's go through a couple of issues that we had

         24  previously discussed. First, with the interaction

         25  between a live operator, or live narration as
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          2  opposed to taped narration.  Can you give us your

          3  thoughts and your statements regarding the

          4  interaction that our tourists may have with

          5  questions, with issues, and again compare them to

          6  the situation under a taped narration and a live

          7  narration?

          8                 MR. AARONSON:  I can speak on this.

          9  I mean, I think our concern at Gray Line is not

         10  necessarily replacing all live, a live tour guide

         11  with a tape.  The concern is in addition to having a

         12  live tour guide providing a tour in English, also

         13  having the option of having a secondary audio

         14  program that can be listened to in many languages.

         15  So, it does not really take away having the live

         16  person there for all of the concerns that the guides

         17  had mentioned about safety, and interaction, to the

         18  extent that that person can understand English, that

         19  aspect is still there.

         20                 Our concern is this would prohibit us

         21  in the future, if the technology is there to provide

         22  a secondary audio from doing that.  The concern is

         23  not that the ability that there will be nobody on

         24  the bus.  It is a question of, what if we would like

         25  to be able to offer that added feature, in addition.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  So, I am

          3  on the same page, I understand what you are saying.

          4  Aside from the driver, you are saying that there is

          5  a place for a live operator plus a secondary tape

          6  narration.

          7                 MR. AARONSON:  Currently, Gray Line

          8  is not, has not looked at this issue, and this is

          9  not something they are looking at to do right now.

         10  Our concern is a couple years down the line, if this

         11  technology is available, and we want to add, in

         12  addition, to having the same tour guide that you

         13  have on the bus, and the driver, a secondary audio.

         14                 I was advised, I guess I learned

         15  today, that New York Waterways, obviously, offers

         16  some similar type of situation. If something like

         17  that would be offered, it is not saying that there

         18  is not going to be a tour guide on the bus.  Our

         19  concern, is this legislation, as written, would

         20  prohibit us from providing additional narration,

         21  even if we still had a tour guide.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  You want

         23  to add?

         24                 MS. KEREN:  I just wanted to add,

         25  understanding who the visitors are to New York, and
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          2  37.8 million people is a lot of people, many of them

          3  come as individuals, or family groups.  They also

          4  have answered surveys that suggest that many of them

          5  like the self- guided tour.  They do not like,

          6  necessarily, the interaction, and we are concerned

          7  that the language of this legislation as currently

          8  proposed, will actually put pressure on certain

          9  consumers to make choices away from sightseeing,

         10  away from the independent operator guides, away from

         11  borough tourism.  It is a very, very diverse group

         12  of people, the percentage that take sightseeing

         13  tours.  And we want to encourage that, particularly,

         14  as I say, in the multi- generational, multi- lingual

         15  families, which are our domestic audience

         16  increasingly.  But also, we are reaching out now to

         17  emerging markets, that are not necessarily traveling

         18  in tour groups, where there is an economy of scale

         19  to run a Gray Line bus, or a large sightseeing bus,

         20  if you have six Belgium, and sixty English speakers.

         21    And some parts of the world, yes, our European

         22  neighbors, and German neighbors are very good at

         23  speaking English, but that is not the case for all

         24  of the markets that come and visit New York.

         25                 And we really are concerned about
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          2  finding a balance between the value of our tour

          3  guides, which as I said in my testimony we care

          4  very, very much about in making them the best tour

          5  guides possible, because that is the best for

          6  tourism in New York, and the growth of this business

          7  as new technologies come online, as new

          8  opportunities to promote tourism in the boroughs and

          9  in the neighborhoods comes online.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  With

         11  regards to flexibility, the issue of flexibility,

         12  again road closures, changes in New York City,

         13  visibility issues, do you see that a live narrator

         14  can adapt quickly, maybe more cost- efficiently than

         15  a taped narration?

         16                 MR. AARONSON:  You know as I said I

         17  think the technology really will determine that.  I

         18  mean, who is to say that there cannot be technology

         19  that will allow some sort of GPS tracking of the

         20  bus, and then determining where the bus is any given

         21  time, it can give the whatever section or

         22  information about that area.  It is just too hard to

         23  predict, right now, what technology will be

         24  available to adapt compared to whether a live person

         25  can adapt.  Clearly, a live person can adapt on
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          2  their feet, it may be possible that technology will

          3  be able to do the same.

          4                 MS. KEREN:  Again, I think the

          5  position of NYC and Company is in support of our

          6  live and licensed guides, and be it the power they

          7  have to enhance the tourist experience.  But, again

          8  I am addressing some of the issues that are not

          9  clear in the current legislation language, which

         10  would prohibit any multi- media use.  So, that there

         11  might be music played, or in the case of the hip hop

         12  tour, they play videos.  Yes, they have live

         13  celebrities and licensed tour guides, and they

         14  actually tell me that they can run this in English

         15  and Japanese.  Because I gather the Japanese market

         16  is very interested in hip hop.  But they play videos

         17  and they play music, and they show kids what the

         18  neighborhoods looked like when hip hop was

         19  developing.  If you do not have that electronic

         20  multi- media capacity, you are taking kids through

         21  neighborhoods and they have no idea.  And these are

         22  educational tours, they have no idea what the Bronx

         23  looked like when hip hop developed.  What the

         24  neighborhoods in the City looked like when that

         25  music came into being.
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          2                 So, as currently worded, the

          3  technology we do have to install video screens in

          4  tour buses, we could not use it.  They would be

          5  prohibited from doing that.  I think that becomes

          6  the concern.  It is not replacing a live guide.  You

          7  cannot replace a hip hop celebrity, that is part of

          8  the attraction of that small business tour.  It is

          9  the issue of closing off the tourism opportunities

         10  that are coming down the road and preventing our

         11  very talented guides from not only telling their own

         12  stories, which is a part of it, but some of the

         13  specialized tours that we offer in this City do

         14  focus on things like music, and art, and

         15  architecture, and what the old history of the

         16  neighborhoods looked like.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  How much

         18  flexibility is a live narrator or operator given in

         19  doing even a taped, or maybe even a video taped

         20  portion of their tour?  Can they include that? Are

         21  they given that kind of flexibility?

         22                 MR. AARONSON:  I do not believe

         23  currently that Gray Line is using any kind of video.

         24    We are using just the tour guides, at this point.

         25  So, I do not think there is any flexibility at this

                                                            70

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  point with that type of thing.  I think the type of

          3  tours we provide is something different than the

          4  tours that are being discussed.

          5                 MS. KEREN:  NYC and Company

          6  represents many small tour operators, who are

          7  licensed tour guides, and charter specific buses.

          8  Some of them have a bus, others have been simply

          9  chartered buses for their scheduled tours, many of

         10  them customize tours, and are again, looking at the

         11  ways that they can integrate their licensed and

         12  knowledgeable tour guides with these other

         13  opportunities.

         14                 Most of our members are smaller

         15  companies.  In this case, we do work with Gray Line.

         16    But, many of the NYC and Company, those dozen or

         17  two dozen sightseeing companies that are members of

         18  NYC and Company are small businesses.  They are in a

         19  somewhat different position, and some of them like

         20  the independent tour guides, are exactly that

         21  independent, not working necessarily for Gray Line,

         22  or Coach, or one of the larger companies.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Just for

         24  my notes, so I am clear on the panels, because after

         25  I review my notes I want to be clear.  The panel I
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          2  am speaking to now, do you have a direct interaction

          3  with tourist, or do you represent an entity that has

          4  a relationship with tourists?  Just so I know,

          5  personally do you have a direct interaction with

          6  tourists?

          7                 MS. KEREN:  NYC and Company has

          8  several visitor centers.  And we have trained

          9  visitor counselors.  One is right here at the foot

         10  of City Hall.  We have another in Harlem at 125th

         11  Street at the Federal Office Building.  And our big

         12  visitor center at 810 7th Avenue and 52nd Street.

         13                 As Director of Policy and Research, I

         14  most definitely do have contact with visitors.  We

         15  all do a stint in the visitors center.  We all take

         16  it very personally to answer questions from

         17  visitors.  During the much discussed Republican

         18  National Convention, my job as a volunteer was a lot

         19  of contact with the visitors.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  That was

         21  face- to- face contact, right?

         22                 MS. KEREN:  Face- to- face, and

         23  question and answer, I also field questions from

         24  visitors and potential visitors to New York on the

         25  phone and via e- mail everyday of my working life.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Donna

          3  let me ask you a question and then we will get to

          4  Matt.  But, complaints since you have that face- to-

          5  face interaction, any kind of complaints that you

          6  get from tourists?  And if so, do you see a trend in

          7  any of these complaints?

          8                 MS. KEREN:  I personally do not.  We

          9  have a tourism division, and we have a staff that

         10  actually oversees all of those visitor centers, and

         11  the tourist counselors.  I get questions like if I

         12  wanted to walk the entire length of Manhattan, how

         13  long is it? But because they get the Research

         14  Department so they think that, I actually do know

         15  the answer to that one, but no I do not have

         16  personal contact with the complaints and such.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I got

         18  you.  Matt.

         19                 MR. AARONSON:  Well, as I mentioned

         20  earlier, I am actually here today because Tom Lewis

         21  is unable to attend.  So, I am speaking on behalf of

         22  Coach, who does have, and Gray Line, which does have

         23  day- to- day contact with the tourists.  I myself do

         24  not.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.
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          2  And, last question on the issue of possible job loss

          3  with, if we move toward, a tape narration, a

          4  majority of which, maybe a tape narration, your

          5  opinion as to the possibility of jeopardizing

          6  certain jobs within the industry?

          7                 MR. AARONSON:  Since at this point,

          8  it is not something that Gray Line is looking to

          9  pursue, the replacement of live tour guides with

         10  tapes, I cannot really comment on that.  You know,

         11  at this point, we are really looking to the future

         12  as whether or not the technology will be out there,

         13  but we will be unable to use it.  And it is not

         14  going to necessarily replacing tour guides, it might

         15  just be in addition to tour guides.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I want

         17  to thank you very much for your time and testimony

         18  today.  Thank you for being here.

         19                 MR. AARONSON:  Thank you.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And our

         21  last panel, we will call a panel of four, we have

         22  Lee Gelber, please step forward Lee, Shoshana

         23  Rothaizer, Roshana?  Shoshana? Justin Ferate,

         24  forgive me if I get this wrong, Mibs Bainum.  Did I

         25  get it right?  I did, Mibs.  Okay.
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          2                 I want to thank the panel for being

          3  here today.  If you would just please state your

          4  full name and your affiliation, and then give your

          5  testimony.  Just hit the red button.

          6                 MR. GELBER:  Good afternoon, my name

          7  is Lee Gelber, I am now a freelance, New York City

          8  licensed tour guide.  I have been a professional

          9  tour guide since 1993.  Until, 2002, I was hiring,

         10  placing, training tour guides for Gray Line, now a

         11  division of Coach USA, designed Gray Line's tour

         12  routes, and I have been an instructor in all three

         13  of the NYC and Company tour guide enhancement

         14  programs.

         15                 Some of the testimony given today, I

         16  found to be rather interesting, although a little

         17  bit off base.  One talking about the accuracy of

         18  technology, I must relate an experience that I had

         19  the other week.  I got on the number two train at

         20  Union Square, and as it was hurdling towards 33rd

         21  Street, its next stop, the synthesized voice

         22  announced the next stop was Gunhill Road.  My days

         23  of living in the Bronx, I had never made such time.

         24                 Now, there was question about foreign

         25  language tours.  And quoting Dutch and Scandinavian
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          2  visitors, and peculiarly enough I know several

          3  guides who speak those languages, but often, Dutch

          4  and Scandinavian visitors, in particular, as well as

          5  a younger generation of German visitors, prefer to

          6  take tours in English, to hone their English

          7  language skills, which are already considerable.

          8  Some of the people I hired at Gray Line should speak

          9  English as well as some of the Scandinavian visitors

         10  that I have run into.  And there are companies that

         11  frequently offer foreign language services besides

         12  Gray Line, everyday offering, I believe it is still,

         13  French, German, Italian, Spanish, and I understand

         14  that they have added Japanese again to the mix.  And

         15  Harlem Spirituals offers French, German, Italian.

         16  And again Mike's organization, which I am a member

         17  of, there is a list of guides in most any language

         18  you can imagine.  And if they are not a member of

         19  GANYC, a member of the organization, they probably

         20  knows someone who can deliver a tour in Albanian or

         21  Slovak.

         22                 So that, again, is a little bit of a

         23  speechless defense for some reason.  I have to

         24  confess something.  When I was still at Gray Line, I

         25  was involved in a feasibility study for a GPS
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          2  system.  At the time of the City's sightseeing

          3  development that Andy Sydor mentioned.  One, even

          4  than, we are talking about the year 2000, 2001, the

          5  monies involved were tremendous.  And also the

          6  safety element was a concern, particularly on a

          7  double- decker bus. Now, there are other customer

          8  service concerns above and beyond the safety.  And I

          9  would say that something as simple as a senior

         10  group, or not even a senior group, a pregnant lady

         11  wants to know where is the toilet, a GPS system

         12  cannot tell her that.  It cannot tell you where the

         13  ATM machine is, or is there a nearby restaurant

         14  offering Kosher or Hallal food.  It just does not

         15  happen in automation.

         16                 So these are some of the reasons that

         17  I would definitely urge the City Council to endorse

         18  the bill that has been presented.

         19                 And the other concern, something else

         20  that we were talking about the boroughs, the small

         21  boroughs, I should not say small boroughs, small

         22  operators, working in the boroughs, interestingly

         23  enough, I am going to leave and do some further

         24  research on a Brighton Beach tour that I have to do

         25  later this week.  And there are people who do the
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          2  same in the Bronx, and the smaller operators do not

          3  have pockets deep enough to install these

          4  sophisticated systems.

          5                 Finally, there is a route for six

          6  Flemand or Flemish speakers, or whatever, speak to

          7  their hotel concierges or front desk, they will find

          8  a guide for them, or go to the Guides Association,

          9  and they will find them.

         10                 Again, I think if we just watch the

         11  popularity of specialty stores, the growth of the

         12  so- called boutique hotel, the chef- owned and

         13  operated restaurant, personal service still has a

         14  place.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank

         17  you, Mr. Gelber.

         18                 MS. ROTHAIZER:  My name is Shoshana

         19  Rothaizer.  I was born and raised in Queens.  New

         20  York is a very complex city, and it can be very

         21  intimidating to people who come here for the first

         22  time.  On our tour buses - - Presently I work for

         23  Gray Line.  On our tour buses we put a face on the

         24  City, and so we are helpful.  People are always

         25  asking for travel directions.  They want to know
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          2  where hotels are.  They want to know where

          3  restaurants are.  They want to know what theater is

          4  showing which performance, and so on.

          5                 At different times of the day, there

          6  are different things going on.  If you are taking

          7  people around the City in the morning, there may be

          8  places that are not open yet.  When I take people

          9  through the Village, if they are not getting off at

         10  that stop, I encourage them to come back in the

         11  evening.  There are places to eat, and bars to go

         12  to, and lots of different theater.

         13                 If there was just a tape, who would

         14  tell them about Off- Off Broadway?  Certainly not

         15  the tape.  So I can give information that a tape

         16  would never give.

         17                 We have talked about the detours, for

         18  example, last week at the United Nations.  So I did

         19  not know from one moment to the next what street we

         20  would be going up.  And I loved it, because it got

         21  me, it gave me an opportunity to talk about Gramacy

         22  Park, for example, going down 23rd Street, bring up

         23  Edith Wharton.  There are some many different ways

         24  that a live guide is much preferable to tapes.

         25                 I mentioned before that I am from
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          2  Queens, and something came up with saying that

          3  somehow tapes can help the other boroughs, I think

          4  that people help, you know, the other boroughs.

          5  There are so many different tour guides, let's

          6  encourage people to give more tours in Queens, and

          7  the Bronx, and Brooklyn, and Staten Island.  Let's

          8  encourage people, as Gray Line did with the Japanese

          9  tours to find Japanese people who want to relate,

         10  and who need to, perhaps, get some coaching in

         11  passing the license test.

         12                 If I am stuck in traffic on First

         13  Avenue, I can tell people about Queens, I can say,

         14  look to the right, look across the East River, that

         15  is Queens.  It is the most ethnically diversed

         16  county in the United States.  And I tell them about

         17  how many nationalities are now in the high school,

         18  that I attended years ago.  And so, you know, these

         19  are ways that certainly a live person is going to be

         20  more helpful.

         21                 One of the other items that was

         22  brought up earlier was that very often books do not

         23  have quite up- to- date information. And I believe

         24  that tapes also would require such an incredible

         25  amount of changing that they would not be cost-
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          2  effective, and they would not be accurate, and they

          3  would give people misinformation, which we certainly

          4  do not want.

          5                 I think it is excellent that New York

          6  is one of the only cities that requires licenses for

          7  tour guides, so that we can have a standard of

          8  excellence in New York City, which is what every

          9  visitor to New York deserves, is excellence.

         10                 For some people the highlight of

         11  their trip to New York City is their tour bus

         12  experience.  We want to have guides, working at Gray

         13  Line I am always amazed that you have native New

         14  Yorkers, you have people from Uruguay, Brazil,

         15  France, people from all over, and native New

         16  Yorkers, Puerto Ricans, Jews, Italians, every ethnic

         17  group giving different prospectives.

         18                 Some people are more interested in

         19  talking about shopping.  Other people are more

         20  interested in talking about history.  Other people

         21  know the date of every single building that has been

         22  built.  And as it goes, the people on the buses,

         23  some of them want to know about history, some of

         24  them could not care about the buildings, they want

         25  to know where to shop, and so the guide can be
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          2  flexible, and hopefully, you know, intelligent about

          3  it.

          4                 And then lastly, the idea that you

          5  have a driver and a guide is very important, because

          6  we all know that New York City traffic is some of

          7  the worst in the world.  The driver has to be able

          8  to concentrate on the driving.  If you merely have a

          9  tape, that will mean that the driver will be

         10  constantly distracted by people asking questions.

         11  And so safety is very important.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank

         14  you, Shoshana.

         15                 MR. FERATE:  Good afternoon, my name

         16  is Justin Ferate.  I have been a professional tour

         17  guide in New York City and a tour guide instructor

         18  for almost 25 years.  Roughly, in one manner or

         19  another I have had a direct intervention in the

         20  training of roughly one- third of the City's

         21  licensed guides in New York. Recently, the

         22  Department of Consumer Affairs of the City of New

         23  York selected me to create the new licensing

         24  examination.

         25                 That is why I am here.  I think there
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          2  are a number of issues that have been very

          3  eloquently addressed, I think, by the first

          4  speakers, the TWU representatives, who I think spoke

          5  my words often better than I could, so.  But, I

          6  there are things that I think need to be addressed.

          7                 Historically, this City has looked to

          8  Europe as its model, because historically European

          9  tour guides were considered to be the best tour

         10  guides that you could find.  That was true, until

         11  the encouragement of the automated tape systems,

         12  which have actually a major decline in the quality

         13  of the tour.  And for those of you who have recently

         14  been to Europe, I think you can relate your own

         15  experiences.

         16                 What happens is it brings the

         17  business down to bottom line.  It brings it down to

         18  the least possible cost, the lowest cost for the

         19  consumer.  And what that means is it, let's face it,

         20  the cost of paying your rent check is always going

         21  to be a little bit different than what it costs to

         22  plug a tape into the machine.

         23                 The companies that use this are not

         24  the small companies, because small companies cannot

         25  afford it, that has been repeated time again, but
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          2  may I repeat it one more time.  The small companies

          3  cannot afford it.  The large companies can afford

          4  it, and where they are going to afford it is on the

          5  dominant languages. That is one of things, there are

          6  a number of red herrings that have been thrown in.

          7                 One of the red herrings is secondary

          8  audio.  Now what is secondary audio?  Secondary

          9  audio is not going to be in the Czech language, it

         10  is not going to be in Rebekastana, it is not going

         11  to be in any of the languages that are truly the

         12  unaddressed languages, because the large tour

         13  companies are not in the business of addressing

         14  small, unrepresentative groups.  They are in the

         15  business of making money where the money mostly

         16  lies, and that is in the dominant language groups,

         17  which are English, Spanish, French, Italian, and

         18  German, and maybe a few miters mattering, and more

         19  recently Japanese.

         20                 Although, historically, the Japanese

         21  audience in New York has always been handled by

         22  Japanese business men.  Virtually, no Japanese

         23  tourists, up until very recently, have been given by

         24  any company in New York City that was not Japanese

         25  owned.
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          2                 The thing is that this is something

          3  very serious to take.  There is the talk about

          4  enhancement being not permissible by this proposed

          5  legislation, that is an absurd statement, an

          6  absolutely absurd statement.  I regularly, as a

          7  licensed guide for over 25 years in New York City,

          8  and having given tours for frankly, close to 40

          9  years, regularly use audios, regularly use compact

         10  disc, regularly produce material so that people have

         11  a multiple experience.

         12                 When I did a series for the New York

         13  Public Library on Life on the Wicked Stage, the

         14  history of entertainment in New York, how can I talk

         15  about entertainment without sound, without visual?

         16  I incorporated it, I passed out song sheets, I made

         17  everyone sing the songs, so they understood the

         18  relationship to where they are going.  When I do a

         19  tour on Frank Lloyd Wright, I use photographs, I use

         20  images, I talk about the history of Frank Lloyd

         21  Wright.  I also can do, what a tape cannot do, which

         22  is say look at that building and understand what it

         23  consists of.  When someone says, well I do not

         24  understand.  Then I can say well, let me try another

         25  way, maybe this will make sense for you.  No tape in
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          2  the world is ever, ever going to do that.

          3                 Now in truth, I must state, and I

          4  want to state for the record, that the tape

          5  possibility will never affect my personal business.

          6  As a private operator with a company named Tours of

          7  the City, I do specialty tours for people that want

          8  specialized programs, no tape is ever going to

          9  replace me.  But, the thing is a great many of the

         10  licensed, professional tour guides, who are very

         11  hard working, very dedicated, very devoted to

         12  providing for the visitors to New York City, the

         13  best possible experience they could have, are quite

         14  frankly, being threatened by a machine. Those

         15  machines, for example, as I said, on the language

         16  tapes, so you do a secondary tape, what language is

         17  that going to be?  That is going to be French,

         18  Spanish, German, Italian.

         19                 Now if you will look at any Gray Line

         20  brochure, you find that the languages being provided

         21  on regular sightseeing tours will be French,

         22  Italian, Spanish, German, with the only recent

         23  introduction of the Japanese.

         24                 What about the Belgians coming?

         25  Let's face it virtually every Belgian speaks French.
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          2    And the use a group, even if they are Fleman, and

          3  quite frankly, one of my favorite students happens

          4  to be one of the major journalists in Belgium who

          5  lives in New York City, and I guarantee you she

          6  would be available at a moments notice to do a tour

          7  in either French or Fleman, and do a damn site

          8  better than any language tape could ever possibly,

          9  possibly do.

         10                 Now, my concern on the overall, is

         11  so, a major company does take up the language tape,

         12  what happens then?  Well what you are not taking,

         13  perhaps, into consideration is the fact that there

         14  are many bus companies who would love to cut into

         15  the tour guide business.  And they do not like

         16  paying tour guides either, but if they can get a

         17  language tape that they can buy from a distributor,

         18  plug that tape in, then you have all of those major

         19  bus companies, which are not necessarily members of

         20  New York City and Company, because they are out of

         21  New Jersey, they are out of Connecticut, they are

         22  out of Boston, they out of Quebec, they are out of

         23  Montreal, they are plugging those tapes in and look

         24  at the number of suddenly unemployed tour guides in

         25  the City of New York. And that is where these tapes
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          2  going to be used, these tours are not going to be

          3  used to accommodate people with an unusual or area,

          4  and unusual subject matter.

          5                 I feel very strongly about this.  I

          6  have worked with many, many tour guides.  In the

          7  course of my years working as an individual, as a

          8  manager at Gray Line, I preceded Lee Gelber at Gray

          9  Line as the Director of Tour Services, I have

         10  personally worked over the years, with close to

         11  2,000 tour guides.  And the thing is that these

         12  peoples' lives are being potentially endangered.

         13                 And on that I will rest my peace, and

         14  thank you very much.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank

         16  you, Justin. Okay, just state your name.

         17                 MS. BAINUM:  My name is Mibs Bainum,

         18  and I have been a tour guide since 1996.  For two

         19  years I worked for Gray Line, and two years I worked

         20  for New York Waterway.  I also teach public speaking

         21  in the City University of New York System, and know

         22  that people remember the first speaker and the last

         23  speaker.  So I will try to summarize what I have

         24  heard in this room this morning.

         25                 The argument that other cities are
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          2  doing the taped tours does not make any sense to me,

          3  because New York is unlike any other city.  I would

          4  like just to reiterate the facts that seem terribly

          5  true and important to me.  A live tour guide is a

          6  traffic cop, we can see what is going ahead several

          7  blocks.  We can see what is happening a few feet in

          8  front of us.  We can be another set of eyes for our

          9  bus driver.

         10                 I can say that I do not think I have

         11  ever had a typical tour.  Every tour I have ever

         12  given, I have had to make some change.  That is life

         13  in the big city.

         14                 And the ability to answer questions,

         15  crucial.  And some of the questions are staggering.

         16  I remember someone asked me how much the Empire

         17  State building weighed.  I did not know that day,

         18  but I found out.  And then I found out about the law

         19  that you cannot put a building up that weighs more

         20  than the dirt you took out to dig the basement, and

         21  we do not sink for that reason.

         22                 I personally had a disastrous

         23  experience, because I was at Waterway when they

         24  introduced the tapes, and it was a disaster.  They

         25  did not work, the tour guide had to stay in the
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          2  pilot house to cue the machine, and the pilots did

          3  not like that at all, neither did the tour guides.

          4                 As was stated earlier, generally

          5  people took off their headsets and listened to the

          6  live person.  There is no replacement for a live

          7  person.  I agree that a tape of New York, New York,

          8  pictures can be added, I do not object to that.  But

          9  I think the wording should be such that you must

         10  keep a live tour guide on every tour in the City.

         11                 A machine cannot replace a real

         12  person.  And the other good thing about the live

         13  speaker is that they know when to say goodbye.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank

         15  you, Mibs.  Just a few real quick questions.  I know

         16  eight years of service, Justin 25 years, Shoshana

         17  and Lee how many years of service as a tour guide or

         18  in the industry?

         19                 Just use the microphone please.

         20                 MR. GELBER:  In my case, since 1993,

         21  so that is what 12, close to 12 years.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Right,

         23  and Shoshana?

         24                 MS. ROTHAIZER:  Officially only a

         25  year and a half.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay, it

          3  is okay.  You got a little ways to go.

          4                 A question to the panel, as we have

          5  spoken about, and even Mibs eluded to it, the

          6  combination to enhance a tourist's experience on a

          7  tour, the combination of live narration with the

          8  video or with tape narration, I know Justin you use

          9  it, Mibs you have seen it to an extent.  Do you

         10  think there is a place, possibly in the near future,

         11  where there could be a combination of live narration

         12  and an enhanced tape or video, music, what have you?

         13                 MR. FERATE:  Well, I have used

         14  musical combination when it works.  I was privileged

         15  to participate in the festivities concerning the

         16  50th Anniversary of the opening of South Pacific.

         17  And one of the things that I did was put the

         18  original score on the bus for the surviving cast

         19  members who were being fated that day. Who by the

         20  way, these people the youngest of whom of was over

         21  60 still are in great voice.  But it was part of the

         22  activity and it was a terrific time.

         23                 But yet, I also delivered a

         24  traditional tour, which certainly these show

         25  business professionals appreciated.
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          2                 MR. GELBER:  I think the issue is

          3  they truly are enhancements, but they are not a

          4  tour.  And my concern is once you start getting

          5  towards something is pre- packaged and programmed

          6  then the enhancement becomes the tour.  And the

          7  important part of the factor of the whole scenario,

          8  which is the live human connection and the ability

          9  to be flexible to the situation, is missing from the

         10  picture.  A characteristic of that, are certain

         11  companies in New York City, certain tourist

         12  attraction which have pre- scripted tours, which God

         13  forbid, the tour guide should ever vary from that

         14  pre- scripted tour, the result is that people walk

         15  away going eh. The truth is I have had more people

         16  walk away from the United Nations tours dissatisfied

         17  than satisfied.  And I have had tour leaders come

         18  back to me and say, absolutely not, I do not want my

         19  people to go back to the UN, because all they do is

         20  give me the can't speech.

         21                 The difference between that and a

         22  human being who says where are you from?  What are

         23  you about?  Tell me who you are? What is your ethnic

         24  background?  How can I bring this city alive for

         25  you?  And that is something that no tape could ever
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          2  do.

          3                 MS. BAINUM:  And those first five

          4  questions I asked, Have you been here before?  What

          5  are your interests?  How old are you?  I mean, if I

          6  find out a little bit about them, than I can tailor

          7  the tour to them.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:

          9  Something a tape could not do, another words.

         10                 MR. GELBER:  May I add something

         11  there.  Mike mentioned, and I have had the

         12  experience as well, particularly with some of these

         13  cruises, a lot of the patrons are older or elderly,

         14  British citizens.  Oscar Wilde once apply said the

         15  British and the Americans are separated by the bond

         16  of a common language.  A canned tape, as

         17  sophisticated as some of these companies might be,

         18  like the guys that use to do that taxi recording

         19  that we all loved so much, won't recognize the

         20  difference in languages between, as I said, and

         21  there really is a definite separation.  So, I

         22  kiddingly say to my British clients, I am bilingual,

         23  I speak British and American, and it works, and it

         24  is important sometimes.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And
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          2  lastly, and briefly, could you see that possibly

          3  your own jobs, or jobs in the industry, are in

          4  jeopardy or possibly in jeopardy as we go more, or

          5  possibly in the future, could go more to further or

          6  full tape narration?

          7                 MR. FERATE:  When was the last time

          8  anyone in this room had a positive experience with

          9  an automated telephone answering system?  The

         10  telephone company has now got information assistance

         11  done on an automated system.  I will call for Bob

         12  Henry, and they will say, is that Piscataway, and

         13  you will say no, Bob Henry.  July, you know, there

         14  is no possibility for interaction. I think,

         15  ultimately, what the real problem is, as once again,

         16  is that those larger companies when they realize

         17  there is a cost saving, no benefits, no health

         18  problem, all of those things go out the window.

         19  Than what it is going to do is lower the level so

         20  low that professionals, that is the important

         21  question, professionals will not be able to afford

         22  to compete with the machines.  And what will happen

         23  is exactly what is happening in the European tour

         24  market right now.  The quality tour guides have left

         25  the tour guide business.  It is very difficult to
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          2  get a talented tour guide in Europe today,

          3  specifically, because of machines.

          4                 New York City has looked to Europe

          5  for its standards, my feeling is that New York City

          6  should set the standards for Europe.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Well I

          8  want to thank you all very much for being here, and

          9  for your time and testimony. Thank you so much.  I

         10  want to lend a thanks to my colleague, Phil Reed,

         11  for not being here today, and for allowing me to

         12  Chair this Committee.  And again, as Chair of the

         13  Civil Service and Labor Committee I am very

         14  interested, obviously, on the job aspect, but also

         15  the quality of service we provide our visitors to

         16  New York City.

         17                 So I do look forward to subsequent

         18  conversations and discussions on Intro. 271, and

         19  look forward to the next hearing. I will tell my

         20  staff to call this Committee, and to add my name as

         21  a sponsor to Intro. 271.

         22                 Ladies and gentlemen, thank you for

         23  being here today, I wish you all the best of days.

         24  This meeting is adjourned. Thank you.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 12:15 p.m.)
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